
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01235 422523
E-mail: paul.bateman@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 19 May 2020

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 AT 4.30 PM

You can view the live stream of the meeting by clicking here . When your web 
browser opens, select “Watch on the Web instead” button and then when the 
“Welcome to the live event!” window opens select “join anonymously”.

Members of the Committee:
Ian Snowdon (Chairman)
Peter Dragonetti (Vice-
Chair)
Ken Arlett
David Bretherton
Kate Gregory

Lorraine Hillier
Alexandrine Kantor
George Levy
Jo Robb

Ian White
Celia Wilson

Substitutes
Sam Casey-Rerhaye
Stefan Gawrysiak
Sarah Gray
Victoria Haval

Kellie Hinton
Mocky Khan
Axel Macdonald
Jane Murphy

Caroline Newton
Alan Thompson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on 
this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjY5OWIwNjktYThlNy00NzY1LWI5YjgtMTA0MTUyODc2OWU0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22575c0bde-3a1d-4474-85c6-550cf50fdc99%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22fb86912f-0924-4d52-8d33-c8f6ae05152f%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


2

 
1 Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman and general housekeeping matters.

2 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 12)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the meeting 
held on Wednesday 26 February 2020.  

4 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5 Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or 
withdrawn.

6 Proposals for site visits  

7 Public participation  (Pages 13 - 20)

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to make a 
representation on planning applications which are being presented to this committee 
meeting. All representations must be received by 12 noon, two working days before 
the meeting, namely by 12 noon on Friday 22 May 2020.

Statements duly received will be published and thus available to the public. They will 
not be read out at the meeting.
 
ADDITIONAL NOTE

Statements received

 A schedule of the written representations received is attached.

Development control applications



3

Site Address Proposal Application No Page

8 P19/S4364/FUL 
- Old Vicarage, 
The Street, 
South Stoke  

To change the use of a cowshed & 
dairy, to make half of the building to 
a dog day care centre and the other 
half to a vehicle storage for a 
temporary 5 year period (as 
amplified by details submitted by the 
applicant on 18 & 20 February 
2020).

P19/S4364/FUL 21 - 36

9 P20/S0688/FUL 
- 105 Henley 
Road, 
Sandford-on-
Thames, OX4 
4YW  

Extension to provide 2 x 1-bedroom 
flats

P20/S0688/FUL 37 - 56

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information

All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number. 

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 26 FEBRUARY 2020 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Present:

Ian Snowdon (Chairman)

Peter Dragonetti (Vice Chairman), Ken Arlett, David Bretherton, Sam Casey-Rerhaye 
(substituting for Jo Robb), Kate Gregory, Lorraine Hillier, Alexandrine Kantor, George 
Levy, Ian White and Celia Wilson

Apologies:

Jo Robb tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Paul Bateman, Paul Bowers, Sharon Crawford, Paula Fox, Simon Kitson and Paul Lucas

171 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

172 Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 3 and 12 February 2020 as 
a correct record and agree that the Chairman sign these as such.

173 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

174 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

175 Proposals for site visits 

There were no proposals for site visits.

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2

176 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

177 P19/S4168/FUL - Blue Bonnets, 31 West End, Cholsey, OX10 9LP 

Alexandrine Kantor arrived partway through this item and took no part in the discussion or 
decision on the application.

The committee considered application P19/S4168/FUL for the variation of condition 2 - 
Approved Plans of application P19/S1585/FUL, for changes to the designs for plots 2 & 3 
and updates to the main access road to suit the requirements of the fire service (as 
corrected by Site Plan WST.9101 Rev L in relation to the footprint of Plot 2). Construction 
of three detached houses on land to rear of 31 West End (as amended by plans and 
Design and Access Statement received 22 July reducing the scheme from 4 dwellings to 
three), the construction of three detached houses on land to rear of 31 West End (as 
amended by plans and Design and Access Statement received 22 July reducing the 
scheme from 4 dwellings to three) at Blue Bonnets, 31 West End, Cholsey, OX10 9LP.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting. 

The planning officer reported that the Council had received a letter from the Cholsey 
Parish Council confirming that they could not attend the meeting. In the letter they 
explained that the parish council had not objected to previous planning permission being 
granted. However, they reported that this was an error and that they should have objected 
on the grounds that the development was contrary to the neighbourhood plan. They 
therefore objected to this development, which in their view remained contrary to the 
adopted neighbourhood plan.

The committee noted that in the present application plot 3 had been reduced and moved, 
providing more manoeuvring space.

Responding to a question from the committee, the planning officer confirmed that the 
application site was not within the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB).

Wing Commander Christian Royston-Airey, the applicant, spoke in support of the 
application.

A motion, moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote. 

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/S4168/FUL subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Development to commence within three years from the original permission.
2. Approved plans. 
3. Surface water drainage works (as approved).
4. Schedule of Materials (as approved).
5. Boundary walls & fences (as approved).

Page 6



3

6. Tree Protection (as approved).
7. Construction Traffic Management (as approved).
8. Landscaping (including access road and hard standings) (as approved).
9. New vehicular access. 
10. Parking & manoeuvring areas retained. 
11. Vision splay protection. 
12. No garage conversion into accommodation.
13. Withdrawal of Permitted Development rights (Part 1 Class A) - no extensions etc.

178 P19/S4050/FUL - The Land North of Woodcote, Oxford Road, 
Woodcote 

Lorraine Hillier, a local ward councillor, stood down from the committee for consideration of 
this item.

The committee considered application P19/S4050/FUL for The Change of Use of an 
Agricultural Field to an Equestrian Cross-Country Track, including the siting of a Porta 
Cabin and associated drainage (revised plans received 18th December, amending site 
access and providing site section of proposed water jump) on land North of Woodcote, 
Oxford Road, Woodcote. 

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting. 

The planning officer reported that there were a number of neighbour consultation 
responses raising objection on the basis of highway safety, adverse impacts on the 
landscape and neighbouring amenity issues. There were also responses in support of the 
application from members of the equestrian community.

Since the despatch of the agenda, the Woodcote Parish Council had requested additional 
and amended conditions relating to the closure and subsequent screening of the existing 
access points onto the A4076 and the B471. The planning officer proposed to the 
committee that conditions 5 and 6, which related to highway safety measures, should be 
reworded in order to incorporate the Parish Council's requested changes.  

The Chilterns Conservation Board had raised no objection to the application during the 
formal public consultation, subject to the submission of a detailed landscaping scheme as 
a condition of consent. 

The Chilterns Conservation Board had stated in their consultation response that flood 
lighting should not be supported in this application. They also acknowledged in their 
response that none was currently proposed. 

Councillor Malcolm Smith, Vice Chairman of Woodcote Parish Council, spoke to the 
application on behalf of that council. Some continued reservations were expressed about 
the permanent grant of planning permission and there was a view that a temporary 5-year 
consent remained preferable. However, it was acknowledged that this would be difficult to 
justify. The Parish Council would be prepared to withdraw its objection, were the 
Committee were minded to amend conditions 5 and 6, in line with the planning officer’s 
recommendation.  

Diana Rhodes, a local resident, spoke in support of the application.

Page 7



4

Tom Bishop, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

Lorraine Hillier, a local ward councillor, spoke to the application.

A motion, moved and seconded, to grant planning permission, subject to amended 
conditions 5 and 6 (shown below), was declared carried on being put to the vote.  

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/S4050/FUL subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement within three years - Full Planning Permission

2. Development to be implemented in accordance with the approved plans unless 
varied by other conditions of consent.

3. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a scheme for the 
landscaping of the site, including the planting of trees and hedging, and the 
treatment of the access road and hard standings, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 
details on the extent and location of hedgerow planting on site, with specifications 
for the species, best practice techniques to establish and maintain any planting, and 
a scheme of replacement should planting fail in the first 5 years. The agreed 
planting shall be delivered within 1 year of the first use of the development and 
retained as such.

4. Prior to the commencement of the approved scheme, surface water and foul 
water drainage details must be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority.

 5. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the existing trees 
and hedgerow shall be cut back in order to give clear visibility in accordance with 
the vision splays shown on the approved plan (2054-001 A). Thereafter, the splays 
shall not be obstructed by any object, structure, planting or other material with a 
height exceeding or growing above 0.6m metres as measured from carriageway 
level. Replacement trees and hedging shall be planted within the boundary of 
the field as part of the detailed landscaping scheme required under Condition 3.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy T1 of the South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

6. Prior to first use of the approved development, the existing access point onto the 
B471 shall be closed. The existing access onto the A4074 shall be retained but not 
used by any vehicular traffic associated with the development.  

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy T1 of the 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

7. Details of the proposed security lighting must be agreed prior to first use of the 
proposed development. No other external lighting shall be installed without the prior 
grant of planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

Page 8



5

8. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the 
equestrian facilities shall only be used for the purposes and operating times 
specified within the supporting planning statement (Ref: 1524-7907).

179 P19/S4261/FUL - Bournes Farmhouse, Harpsden Road, Binfield 
Heath 

The committee considered application P19/S4261/FUL for the demolition of existing 
dwelling and erection of a two-storey 4-bedroom detached dwelling, with basement and 
detached carport, and a two storey 3-bedroom detached dwelling with basement and 
integral garage, both using retained access from Harpsden Road (updated bat survey 
received 19th December 2019 and access width confirmed and carport enlarged as shown 
on revised site plan received 9th January 2020) at Bournes Farmhouse, Harpsden Road, 
Binfield Heath.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

The meeting noted that the Binfield Heath Parish Council had withdrawn their objection to 
the application, as they had acknowledged that their objections were not acceptable in 
current planning policy terms. The committee had received the full text of the parish 
council’s email message and this was also read out at the meeting by the democratic 
services officer.

A motion, moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote. 

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/S4261/FUL subject to the 
following conditions:

1.  Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2.  Approved plans. 
3.  No change in levels.
4.  Schedule of materials required prior to foundations.
5.  Obscure glazing. 
6.  Withdrawal of Permitted Development Rights  
     (extensions/outbuildings/hardstandings). 
7.  Existing vehicular access retained.
8.  Parking & Manoeuvring Areas Retained.
9.  No Garage conversion into accommodation.
10. Landscaping Scheme (including hardstandings and boundary treatment) prior to 

foundations.
11. Tree Protection to be implemented as agreed.
12.  Ecological protection & mitigation (details required prior to commencement).
13.  Wildlife Protection (mitigation approved).
14. Highways Informatives.

180 P20/S0092/O - 69 Park Street, Thame, OX9 3HU 

David Bretherton and Kate Gregory, local ward councillors, stood down from the 
committee for consideration of this item.

Page 9



6

The committee considered application P20/S0092/O for the demolition of existing buildings 
and erection of 3 three-bedroom two-storey dwellings with parking and amenity space at 
69 Park Street, Thame,

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting. The 
planning officer reported that the site had an existing planning permission and that the 
same application had been considered in 2014, 2017 and 2019. The proposal’s relation to 
the street scene remained unchanged. 

Councillor Linda Emery spoke on behalf of Thame Town Council, objecting to  the 
application. 

Jake Collinge, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

Kate Gregory, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

In response to questions from the committee, the planning officer confirmed that in the 
event of refusal, the applicant could merely submit a reserved matters application, making 
the application extant for another three years. As a general rule, a developer could not be 
forced by the council to complete a site. Noting that the Thame Town Council had 
highways safety concerns, supported by one of the local members, he also reported that 
the Oxfordshire County Council (OCC), as highways authority, had stated that reversing 
out on to the road was a typical feature of many properties on this stretch of road. In 
addition, the OCC had been consulted twice on these present proposals and historically 
had had no objection. Were the committee minded to refuse on highways grounds, the 
council would be required to obtain reliable supporting expertise. The committee were 
advised that it had to refer to a material change in circumstances to support a refusal, and 
a change in committee membership over time was no such justification. Refusal of 
planning permission by the committee could lead to costs against the council if it lost on 
appeal. 

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse outline planning permission failed owing to 
equal numbers in favour and against.  A motion, moved and seconded, to grant outline 
planning permission was declared carried on being put to the vote, the Chairman using his 
casting vote. 

RESOLVED: to grant outline planning permission for application P20/S0092/O subject to 
the following conditions:

1. That the development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than 
whichever is the later of the following dates (a) the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission; or (b) the expiration of two years from the final approval 
of the reserved matters, or in the case of approval on different dates, the final 
approval of the last such matter to be approved.

2. In the case of any reserved matter, application for approval must be made not later 
than the expiration of 3 years beginning with the date of the grant of outline 
planning permission.

3. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the parking and 
turning areas shall be provided in accordance with drawing no.01a and shall be 
constructed, laid out, surfaced, drained and completed to be compliant with 

Page 10



7

sustainable drainage (SuDS) principles, and shall be retained unobstructed except 
for the parking of vehicles associated with the development at all times.

4. Prior to the first occupation of the development vision splays measuring 2.0 metres 
by 2.0 metres shall be provided to each side of the access and the vision splays 
shall not be obstructed by any object, structure, planting or other material with a 
height exceeding or growing above 0.6 metres as measured from carriageway level

5. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until foul and surface 
water drainage works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

6. Prior to the commencement of any site works (including demolition or site 
clearance) an arboricultural method statement shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority

The meeting closed at 7.40pm.

Chairman Date

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council

Planning Committee (virtual meeting)

Thursday 28 May 2020, 4.30 pm

ITEM 7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Statements Received in Respect of Planning Applications

The statements received in respect of the applications to be considered on the 
agenda are attached.

Item 7. P19/S4364/FUL - Old Vicarage, The Street, South Stoke

 Statement by Kate Barrett
 Statement by Roger Guiver
 Statement by South Stoke Parish Council

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Subject: RE: Planning Committee Meeting - P19/S4364/FUL

Old Vicarage

Dear Sir/Madam

I would like you to submit the below email to the planning committee in advance of the meeting on 
Thursday 28 May 2020 with regards to the objection I have; 

I have an issue with the opening times and collection/delivery of these dogs which will result in 
increased traffic in this quiet village.

I quote from the application documentation...

Dogs will be collected and returned to their owners' homes using cars that belong to those who 
already live at The Old Vicarage, between the hours of 8-9am and 4-5pm.

However, quoting directly from their website...

 For those with a flexible return time, dogs can be collected from me at the Perch and Pike Public 
House across the road from the Vicarage, where vital "pub and crisp training" is undertaken.

I spend most of my time looking after the day care dogs, especially those that are delivered at 6am.

Also the timings stated on the website...

Our opening hours are from 08.00 to 18.00, although these times are flexible. Depending on the 
extra hours, we may have to charge more.

So does your recommendation only allow this application to be approved providing the dogs are 
collected/delivered to/from their homes during 8-9am and 4-5pm whereas the website states, 
"delivery by the owners to South Stoke as early as 6am". Also, how does your recommendation tie in 
with the end of the working day being a "flexible" 6pm.

Is delivery to a very quiet South Stoke an option at 6am and what is your interpretation of the times 
being "flexible" after 6pm?

Regards 

Kate Barratt

Ponds House

South Stoke

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



From Roger Guiver

Planning Committee Meeting - P19/S4364/FUL

Old Vicarage

To get a wider view of feeling in our village I have spoken to the chairman of the parish council, 
Bryan Urbick (together with others who received the personal letter from Helen).

He suggested the parish council was under the impression that the “opening times”, as per the 
application documentation were 8am to 5pm.

Having pointed him in the direction of the website he was amazed as to the quoted “deliveries” at 
6am and “flexible collection” after 6pm from the local public house!

He suggested that the parish council had already made their final submission to the planning 
committee and could not add to it but I have the option so to do. I therefore would like the following 
to be presented to the committee…

One of the issues I have is the opening times and collection/delivery of these dogs with resulting 
increase of traffic in this quiet village.

I quote from the application documentation…

Dogs will be collected and returned to their owners’ homes using cars that belong to those who 
already live at The Old Vicarage, between the hours of 8-9am and 4-5pm.

However, quoting directly from one of the managing partners on their website…

For those with a flexible return time, (after 6pm), dogs can be collected from me at the Perch and 
Pike Public House across the road from the Vicarage, where vital "pub and crisp training" is 
undertaken.

I spend most of my time looking after the day care dogs, especially those that are delivered at 6am.

Also the timings stated on the website…

Our opening hours are from 08.00 to 18.00, although these times are flexible. Depending on the 
extra hours, we may have to charge more.

I have not seen the “recommendation” document from the planning officer, Kim Gould, but have 
been told that the times of opening, if approved, would be 8am to 6pm. Why 6pm, the planning 
application request was for 5pm?

Regards

Roger Guiver

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Subject: Submission to the Planning Committee 28th May 2020 P19/S4364/FUL

The Old Vicarage, The Street, South Stoke

Statement from South Stoke PC for submission to the planning committee:

South Stoke Parish Council OBJECT to this application on numerous grounds but would 
highlight the following two most important issues to the committee:

• Noise – Numerous Villagers have raised numerous objections based on noise.

The applicant states..

“We can assure the SSPC that there will not be any noise disturbance in the residential area 
due to the following…. “The dogs will not have a view or contact with the public during their 
stay with us, so the likelihood of them barking and causing noise disturbance within the 
vicinity, I can assure you will not be an issue.” 

“We can categorically assure the SSPC that dogs only bark when they are left alone, not 
exercised adequately and are not entertained.”

The existing cow shed is at the beginning of a run of small commercial businesses operating 
out of original farm buildings. There will be continual traffic past the proposed facility which 
will undoubtedly disrupt the dogs and cause them to bark.

It is ridiculous to say that dogs will not bark when in groups and subject to constant 
strangers.

The Environmental Health Officer states:  “noise can be controlled by a licence”. 

A licence will only enable people to complain, once insitu, a licence will not stop the 
disturbance – no human can stop a group of dogs away from their homes barking with 
continual traffic past the centre.

• Environmental Impact

The applicant states..

“When I started this business, it was just myself walking 2 dogs and this has now grown to 
10 of us doing on average 200 dog walks from Monday to Friday each week. 7 qualified, 
mature walkers collect dogs from their homes, walk close to where the dogs live and 
dropping them back home at the end of the walk”.

This application is different - dogs will be collected and delivered to and from South Stoke 
rather than walking dogs locally to their homes. 

Dog walking close to people’s homes is sustainable – SSPC support that, but bussing dogs 
into a remote village which this application relies upon, is not compatible with today’s 
climate agenda. The District Council was elected in part to address climate change and this 
is completely contrary to our sustainable needs.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



SSPC consider this a wholly inappropriate use within a small remote residential settlement, 
particularly when the building is obviously easily capable of expansion should the storage of 
vintage cars not deliver the same value to the owner in the future.

If the Committee is minded to accept the application, WHICH WE DO NOT SUPPORT, it 
should only be for 1 year so the balance of risk is on the operators and not the existing 
residential dwellings.

Thank you for your consideration

South Stoke Parish Council

Page 20



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

APPLICATION NO. P19/S4364/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 20.12.2019
PARISH SOUTH STOKE
WARD MEMBER(S) Maggie Filipova-Rivers
APPLICANT Sarah Phipps
SITE The Old Vicarage, The Street, South Stoke.
PROPOSAL To change the use of a cowshed & dairy, to make 

half of the building to a dog day care centre and the 
other half to a vehicle storage for a temporary 5 year 
period (as amplified by details submitted by the 
applicant on 18 & 20 February 2020).

OFFICER Kim Gould

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to Planning Committee as the officer’s recommendation of 

approval conflicts with the objection from South Stoke Parish Council. 

1.2 The application site is a former dairy building located to the rear of The Old Vicarage 
in South Stoke.

1.3 The Old Vicarage is a grade II listed building and the site lies within the Chilterns 
AONB.

1.4 The old dairy building sits amongst several buildings currently used as workshops for 
small companies. Vehicular access to the site is directly off The Street via the main 
driveway to The Old Vicarage which veers off down the side of the main building to a 
collection of workshops. This is a narrow, no-through road. The site lies within the 
built- up limits of South Stoke. An OS extract is attached at Appendix 1.

1.5 The site lies within Flood Zone 2.

1.6 The application seeks planning permission for a temporary period of 5 years to 
convert the building into a dog day care facility. Part of the building would be used to 
store vintage cars. Additional information has been provided during the course of the 
application. The additional information has clarified the following points:

 The part of the building to be used for the day care facility would comprise an 
office, play, resting and fun area

 An outside area to the rear of the building would be fenced off for the dogs to 
exercise.

 The license required to operate this use would limit the number of dogs on the 
premises to no more than 9.

 A dog waste septic tank is to be installed to hygienically dispose of dog waste
 The applicant’s intention is to collect the dogs from clients’ homes in the 

morning and to drop them off at the end of the day. An agreement form 
between the applicant and clients would stipulate that this arrangement should 
be maintained and that no dogs should be dropped off or picked up from the 
facility. A copy of this agreement is attached as Appendix 2

 The day care facility would operate from 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S4364/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

 Walkeys LLP has been in operation since 2008 providing dog walking for the 
local community.

Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached as Appendix 
3. Full copies of the plans and consultation responses are available for inspection on 
the council’s website at www.southoxon.gov.uk

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 South Stoke Parish Council – Objection (summary of concerns) 

 This application has been debated at 3 full parish council meetings
 Consider it is the applicant’s intention to expand the business in future and 

extend any permission to unlimited after 5 years.
 Concern regarding noise disturbance in a residential area 
 No restrictions for hours of operations
 Any permission should be restricted to 8am to 6pm- Mon to Friday
 Site is unsuitable for this type of use – too many dogs and handlers in small 

villages
 Type of fencing – sufficient to prevent animals from escaping. Should be subject 

to a condition if approved.
  Site lies within Flood zone 2 – disposal of dog waste is very important.

OCC (Archaeology) – No objection 

Conservation Officer– No heritage objection 

Env. Protection Team – No objection to the proposal on noise, odour or dust grounds. 
A license from the council’s Environmental Protection team will be required. This 
license has conditions to ensure the welfare and safety of the animals.

Highways Liaison Officer (OCC) - 

Drainage – Original comments 
 The application site lies within flood zone 2 and therefore a Flood Risk 

Assessment is required. Additional information required in relation to proposed 
drainage system.

           Subsequent comments
 I am content with the proposed PTP and have no further comments on this 

application. Flood risk assessment is not required.  

Neighbour Object (7) (summary of comments)
 No hours of business stated on forms 
 Noise and disturbance – This number of dogs all in one area will cause a lot of 

noise in residential area
 Inappropriate business to run on a residential property
 Existing planning consent for activity on this site has strict conditions on 

activities and working hours
 Narrow village roads are not appropriate for the increased traffic which will be 

generated by this use.
 Access from the site is completely blind and dangerous
 Building is not insulated – noise
 Questions the council’s Environmental Protection officer’s view on no noise 

issues
 Dogs currently exercised next to the river and their excrement is not removed 

Page 22

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

 If planning permission is granted the premises should receive a certified animal 
inspection annually from the RSPCA or equivalent.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P87/W0090 - Approved (24/04/1987)

Light industrial use for 11 small businesses engaged in restoration of vintage cars, one 
in light aircraft and boat interiors.  (Retrospective).  (Last amended date 13 April 1987).

4.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
4.1 Development Plan Policies

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies:
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR2  -  Employment in rural areas
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) Policies:
CON5  -  Setting of listed building
D1  -  Principles of good design
E8  -  Re-use or adaptation of rural buildings outside built up areas
EP1  -  Adverse affect on people and environment
EP2  -  Adverse affect by noise or vibration
EP3  -  Adverse affect by external lighting
EP4  -  Impact on water resources
EP7  -  Impact on ground water resources
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

South Oxfordshire Emerging Local Plan 2034 Policies 
The council is currently progressing the emerging local plan through the examination 
stage. The plan currently carries limited weight. Relevant policies include;
CF1E  -  Safeguarding community facilities
CF2E  -  Provision of community facilities and services
DES1E  -  Delivering high quality development
DES2E  -  Enhancing local character
DES3E  -  Design and Access Statements
ENV1E  -  Landscape and countryside
EP4E  -  Flood risk
H19E  -  Re-use of rural buildings
STRAT1E  -  The overall strategy

4.2 Neighbourhood Plan - No plan in preparation 

4.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

4.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance

4.5 Other Relevant Legislation
Human Rights Act 1998
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.
Equality Act 2010

Page 23

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P87/W0090


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

5.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
5.1 The relevant planning considerations are:

 Principle
 Noise
 Drainage/Flooding
 Hours of operation 
 Highways
 CIL
 Other issues

5.2 Principle
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless materials considerations indicate otherwise. 

5.3 Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far 
as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.  

5.4 In the case of this application, the most relevant parts of the Development Plan are the 
Core Strategy which was adopted in December 2012 and the saved policies of the 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

5.5 The site lies within the built-up limits of South Stoke which is categorised as one of the 
District’s smaller villages within the SOCS.

5.6 The NPPF advises in paragraph 80 that planning policies and decisions should help 
create conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight 
should be placed on the need to support economic growth, productivity, taking into 
account local business needs and wider opportunities for development. 

5.7 The Framework continues in paragraph 83 to advise that planning policies and 
decisions should enable the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business 
in rural areas both through conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new 
buildings and the diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses.

5.8 Paragraph 84 states that previously developed land and sites that are well related to 
existing settlements should be encouraged where suitable opportunities exist.  They 
should, however, be sensitive to their surrounding and not have an unacceptable 
impact on local roads. 

5.9 Policy CSR2 of the SOCS seeks to grant planning permission for development which 
supports the economy of rural areas through, for example, schemes for agricultural 
diversification and the re-use of rural buildings.

5.10 In this case, the applicant has been running an existing dog walking business since 
2008. She now wishes to invest in a new element of her business which involves 
looking after client’s dogs during the day when they are at work in bespoke 
accommodation which would involve the conversion of an existing building in a small 
village. This philosophy is in accordance with Government advice within the framework 

Page 24



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

and would enable an existing rural business to expand and adapt. As such, it is my 
opinion that the principle of this development is acceptable.

5.11 Noise
Policy EP2 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that new development does not have an 
unacceptable impact on neighbours by way of noise. The Parish Council and most of 
the local residents who have objected to this proposal have included noise from barking 
dogs within their concerns.
 

5.12 I have consulted the council’s Environmental Protection Officer (EPO) on this proposal 
and he has raised no objection on noise grounds. I understand that there are two main 
reasons for this. Firstly, a license from Environmental Services would be required by 
the applicant before she could operate from the premises. This would set out the 
maximum number of dogs she could keep at the premises at any one time. This is 
based on floor area and I have been advised that the maximum number of dogs would 
be no more than 6. Whist the EPO accepts that there is potential for noise, he is of the 
view that it is controllable through the detailed requirements of the license. He is of the 
opinion that the proposal would not lead to unacceptable noise levels.
 

5.13 Secondly, noise nuisance is investigated under environmental legislation via the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990. Therefore, if planning permission was granted and 
a noise issue was raised by a local resident, this would be investigated by 
Environmental Protection who could deal with any statutory noise nuisance under the 
relevant legislation. 

5.12 For the reasons set out above, there is no technical reason to refuse this planning 
application on noise grounds in my view.

5.14 Drainage/Flooding 
The site lies within Flood Zone 2. The NPPF advises that inappropriate development in 
areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas 
at highest risk.

The Council’s drainage engineer has confirmed that a flood risk assessment is not 
required as there is no overnight accommodation proposed and the centre will contain 
flood resilient materials throughout and therefore addresses any flooding concerns. In 
addition, the use would be classified as a less vulnerable form of development which is 
appropriate in Food zone 2.

5.15 Policy EP1 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that new development does not give rise to 
issues relating to watercourses or underground water supplies The EPO has also 
advised the applicant to install a blower over fan operated Treatment Plant which 
conforms to BS EN12566 and BS6297. The applicant has agreed to this request and 
the provision is to be secured by a condition. As such, there are no reasons to refuse 
this application on technical grounds in relation to drainage or flooding. 

5.16 Hours of operation
Policy EP2 seeks to ensure that new development does not result in noise and 
disturbance to local residents. A number of neighbours and the Parish Council have 
referred to the lack of information on the proposed hours of operation for the dog day 
care business. 

5.17 The building to be used as the day care facility is situated within an existing 
development of small light industrial units which were granted planning permission 
under application ref P87/W0090. One of the conditions of that permission was that the 

Page 25



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

site operates from 7am to 6pm on Monday to Fridays and 7.am to 1.pm on Saturdays. 
In the information which the applicant has provided she has confirmed that it is her 
intention to operate the dog business from 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday only. The 
hours are to be controlled with the addition of a condition and I believe this will ensure 
that the development accords with Policy EP2.

5.18 Highways
Policy T1 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that all new development has safe access onto 
the highway network and that development does not result in highway safety issues. 
Initially, the County Highway Authority raised objections to the proposal on the grounds 
that the development would have an adverse impact on highway safety through the 
increased use of an access with restricted visibility.

5.19 After further consideration and following a site visit by the principal engineer, the 
original objection had been dropped and there are now no objections to this proposal 
on highway grounds. The highway officer has concluded as follows:

There is potential for waiting in the carriageway at the access, given two vehicles are 
unable to pass in the access itself. The frequency of such waiting would be dependent 
on the traffic generation of the proposal and neighbouring land uses sharing the access. 
Additionally, in determining the impact of the proposal, the existing use and traffic 
generation of the site must be considered. On this point I conclude any increased traffic 
generation would be negligible in terms of waiting at the access; further comfort is 
provided by the applicant’s proposal not to allow customers to drop off or pick up on site. 
I suggest a condition is imposed to provide further assurance on this matter.

With regard to traffic impact upon the local highway network, I do not foresee any 
perceivable impact and, I stress, to justify refusal of planning permission it must be 
demonstrated any such impact would be severe.”

For these reasons, there is no objection to this proposal on highway grounds.

5.20 A condition has been recommended which requires the day care facility to be run in 
accordance with the details of the service agreement form whereby clients are obliged 
to sign the form before using the dog care service (see Appendix 2). This will help 
ensure that vehicular movements and general disturbance caused by this proposal are 
minimalised. 

5.21 Community Infrastructure Levy
This proposal is not CIL liable.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 Planning permission is granted because the principle of running a dog day care facility 

is acceptable. Although the concerns from the Parish Council and local residents in 
relation to noise and traffic are noted, the number of dogs attending the facility at any 
one time will no more than 6 given the current floor area of the building. With the drop 
off and pick up arrangements to be managed by way of a condition, there will not be 
any material increase in vehicles visiting the site. the County Highway Authority and the 
council’s Environmental Protection team have not raised objections to this proposal and 
therefore there are no technical reasons to refuse the application. As such, the 
development accords with the Development Plan Policies

Page 26



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

7.0 RECOMMENDATION
7.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions:

1. Five year temporary consent
2. Approved plans
3. In accordance with the agreement form.
4. Hours of operation
5. Foul drainage

Author:   Kim Gould
Email:     Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel No:    01235 422600

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 29

Agenda Item 8P19/S4364/FUL



 
 
 
 

WALKEYS LLP SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

The Old Vicarage South Stoke, Berkshire RG8 0JS  
 

Telephone: 01491 874413 Mobile: 07900 094 837  
 

helen@WalKeys.co.uk 
 

helen@top-dog-behaviourist.co.uk 
 

 
THIS WalKeys LLP SERVICE AGREEMENT is dated this………………..of ………………’……………….. between  

WalKeys LLP and the Client:  

 
Name of Client: ………………………….........................…… Home/Mobile No: ………………...……......................................... 
 
Email Address: ............................................................................................................................................................. 
 
Pet Name/s: ……….…………….…………………………………………………………………………...………. 
 
Full Address: ………………………………………………………………………………………………...………. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...... 
 
Background  
 

A. The Client is of the opinion that the Contractor WalKeys LLP has the necessary qualifications, experience and abilities to 
provide services to the client.  

B. WalKeys LLP is agreeable to providing such services to the Client on the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement.       
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

C. In Consideration of the matters described above and of the mutual benefits and obligations set forth in this Agreement, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, the Client and WalKeys LLP agree as follows: 

Services Provided 

The Client hereby agrees to engage WalKeys LLP to provide the Client with the following services: 

 To ensure the good health, cleanliness, comfort, safety and happiness of the dogs covered by this Agreement and to be 
responsible for the dogs entrusted to them. All Dogs will be protected against any dangers and will be cared for by qualified 
adults for the duration of their stay with us. 

 To collect and return dogs to and from the dog owners’ home in a suitable, legal and safe vehicle between the hours of 8am 
and 6pm on days to be agreed. (the cost of which is included in the day care price.) This is due to limited parking spaces and 
access to The Old Vicarage. 

 To issue home keys and or key codes to enable WalKeys LLP to collect and return dogs too and from The Old Vicarage and 
their place of residence. 

 Dogs in day care will be walked 3 times a day and at least one of these walks will be away from the day care centre to give 
them variety. 

 Dog/s will be kept in reasonable peace, quiet and comfort away from neighbours or outside disturbances. 
 The Day Care Centre will be kept clean and thoroughly washed and disinfected at the end of each day, to protect your dogs 

from any contamination. 
 Puppies in day care will be kept separate from adult dogs and only socialised with the older dogs with full supervision by a 

qualified carer. 
 WalKeys will notify the owner as soon as possible of any illnesses or injuries to their dog, dealing with these situations in a 

responsible manner. All our staff are Advanced Pet First Aiders and the day care centre has a separate place where sick or 
injured dogs can be quarantined.  

 WalKeys LLP will ensure that security measures are in situ, safeguarding the wellbeing of your dog/s 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2

Page 30



 
 
 
 

 For customers who provide their own dog food: we request that these be labelled with dog’s name and these will be kept 
separate from other foods and placed in a refrigerator if required. Feeding will take place separately from other dogs and 
given as instructed by the owner. 

 The client will provide details of any medications or special treatment that each animal requires and if medication requires 
administrating during their time in the day care centre, clients must agree to provide these in a dog named, sealed container, 
containing full medical instructions.  

 The client is to ensure that their dog is fit and healthy prior to being collected and puppies are fully vaccinated. 
 The client will provide written instructions and at least 3 telephone contacts. 
 The client gives permission for their dog to be walked off lead. 

 
 

The Services will also include any other tasks which the Parties may agree on. WalKeys LLP agrees to provide such Services to the 
Client. 
 
Terms of Agreement 
 

 The term of this Agreement (The “Term”) will begin on the date of this Agreement and will remain in full force and effect 
indefinitely until terminated as provided in this Agreement. 

 In the event that either Party wishes to terminate this Agreement, that Party will be required to provide 10 days’ written 
notice to the other Party. 

 In the event that either Party breaches a material provision under this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party may terminate this 
Agreement immediately and require the defaulting Party to indemnify the non-defaulting Party against all reasonable 
damages. 

 This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual agreement of the Parties 
 Except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, the obligations of the Contractor will end upon the termination of this 

Agreement. 
 
Liability: 

 The company will maintain liability insurance at all times. Proof of such insurance shall be available for inspection by the 
client upon request. 

 The client shall be fully liable for any damages, loss, or injury caused by the pets listed in this agreement. 
 In the event of an emergency, the company agrees to notify the client as soon as is reasonably possible. 

 
Services Fees: 

 Invoices submitted by WalKeys LLP to the client are due upon receipt. 
 WalKeys LLP have the right to charge late paying clients the Vat at 20% and if necessary, a statutory interest fee based on 

the current Bank of England base rate. 
 WalKeys have the right to charge for same day cancellations. 
 In the event that this Agreement is terminated by the Client prior to completion of the services but where the Services have 

been partially performed, the Contractor will be entitled to pro rata payment of the Payment to the date of termination 
provided that there has been no breach of contract on the part of the Contractor. 

 
Declaration:  

 Clients must inform WalKeys if their dog has any behavioural issues and agree to Helen Hunt (Advanced Dog Behaviourist), 
working with them to re-channel these energies prior to being excepted. This will be charged for accordingly. 

 The Client agrees to pay the first £100 of any liability insurance claim. 
 The Client must complete our Required Information form and sign our Insurance form. 
 WalKeys LLP have the right to refuse dogs in day care, if they are not fully vaccinated and treated for flees, lice and worms. 

Proof of this will be kept on record and renewal of this requested as and when they become due. 
 WalKeys has the right to refuse dogs who do not return on re-call. 
 WalKeys has the right to refuse dogs who show any aggression towards other dogs or people.  
 WalKeys agree to adhere fully to the instructions given by the owner. 
 WalKeys agree to hold house door keys or key codes securely, where the above-named pet/s live and will adhere fully to the 

entering of the home instructions given by the house owner. 
 WalKeys agree to treat the pet/s entrusted to us, with absolute respect and kindness at all times. 
 Upon the expiry or termination of this Agreement, the Contractor will return to the Client any property, documentation, 

records or confidential information which is the property of the Client. 
 Except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, the Contractor may, at the Contractor’s absolute discretion, engage any third 

parties to assist with the provision of the Services. 
 All dog faeces will be disposed of immediately and hygienically in a purpose-built container designed specifically for 

purpose thus preventing cross-contamination. 

 

 

Page 31



 

 

 

 

AUTONOMY 

Except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, the Contractor will have full control over working time, methods and decision 
making in relation to provision of the Services in accordance with the Agreement. The Contractor will work autonomously and not at 
the direction of the Client. However, the Contractor will be responsive to the reasonable needs and concerns of the Client. 

NOTICE 

All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or permitted by the terms of this Agreement will be given in writing 
and delivered to the |Parties at the following addresses. 

 

A. Client …………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 

B. WalKeys LLP 

The Old Vicarage, The Street, South Stoke. Berkshire. RG8 0JS 

 

Additional Clause 

Owner agrees not to, under any circumstances deliver or collect their dogs from The Old Vicarage in South Stoke and agree not to, on 
any account add to the vehicle traffic in and out of South Stoke Village. 

Enurement 

This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding on the Parties. 

Governing Law 

This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of England 

The waiver by either Party of a breach, default, delay or omission of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the other Party will 
not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same of other provisions. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE PARTIES HAVE DULY AFFIXED THEIR SIGNATURES UNDER HAND AND SEAL ON  
 
THIS DAY ………………. OF………………………..’…………………. 
 
 
 Client: ……….…………………………….……………………………………………………………  
 
 
Signed: ……………………………………………...……………………………………………………………. 
 
         
Date: ......................................................................................................................................................................... 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the WalKeys LLP - The company: ……………………………………………………...…… 
 
 

Do you give us permission to pass on your contact details to future clients for references?          Yes / No 
 

Page 32



Appendix 3

Page 33



Page 34



Storage

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

APPLICATION NO. P20/S0688/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 27.2.2020
PARISH SANDFORD
WARD MEMBER(S) Sam Casey-Rerhaye
APPLICANT Mr Steve Nichols
SITE 105 Henley Road, Sandford-on-Thames, OX4 4YW
PROPOSAL Extension to provide 2 x 1-bedroom flats
OFFICER Kim Gould

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to Committee as the officer’s recommendation of approval 

conflicts with the objections from Sandford-on -Thames Parish Council.

1.2 The application site comprises part of 105 Henley Road garden/amenity space. This is 
the last dwelling which forms the southern edge of the built-up limits of Sandford-on-
Thames. 

1.3 Adjacent to the site to the south east is a small agricultural holding, which adjoins the 
junction connecting the settlement to the A4074 trunk road. The A4074 runs along the 
north-eastern boundary to the rear of the site. An OS extract showing the location of 
the site is attached as Appendix 1.

1.4 The application site is in the Oxford Green belt and previous land uses are recorded 
to give rise to the potential of land contaminants. 

1.5 Planning permission was refused under planning ref P18/S1434/FUL for a detached, 
3-bedroom dwelling. A copy of the decision notice for the refused scheme is attached 
at Appendix 2. A subsequent application for a two-storey side extension was 
approved under ref P19/S4260/HH. The front elevation and block plan of this 
approved extension are shown below:

Approved front elevation for extension Approved block plan for extension

Page 37

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S0688/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

1.6 The current application seeks full planning permission to build 2 x 1-bedroom flats as 
an extension to the existing dwelling. It follows the submission of a pre application 
advice request under ref P20/S0224/PEM. The proposed front elevation and block 
plan of this current proposal are shown below:

Proposed front elevation Existing and proposed block plan

1.7 The proposed scheme would appear very similar to the scheme approved under ref 
P19/S4260/HH for a two-storey side extension. The main difference would be the 
provision of 6 parking spaces at the front of the property: a single space for each of 
the flat, two for the existing dwelling and an additional two for visitors. There is a 
shared garden proposed for the flats and a private garden with rear access for 105 
Henley Road.

1.8 The development would be built using materials which match those on the existing 
dwelling – brick, render and tiles.

1.9 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the applications are attached as 
Appendix 3. Full copies of the plans and consultation responses are available for 
inspection on the council’s website at www.southoxon.gov.uk

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Sandford-on-Thames Parish Council – Objection 

We note that a previous application for a new dwelling on the plot of 105 Henley Road 
was declined planning permission last year due to the Green Belt status of the village 
and inappropriate development. 

The PC did not object to the application in the autumn of last year to a side extension to 
enlarge the current property, but this latest application appears to suggest the intention 
was to create and additional two separate dwellings on this site all along. We note that 
the side extension has not yet been built. The PC considers the addition of two flats on 
the "open aspect" side of the property to constitute inappropriate development for a 
Green Belt village which will also result in a cluster of car parking on the front garden 
aspect of the property (which is the first house on entering the village from the A4074). 
The PC would like to invite the Planning Department to consider whether their 
processes are being circumnavigated deliberately by this type of 2-stage planning 
application.

Page 38

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

Contaminated Land – I am unable to comment at present as no appropriate 
contamination assessment has been submitted with the application. The applicant 
should be asked to submit a contaminated land preliminary risk assessment, completed 
by an Environmental Consultant. This will establish the potential for land contamination 
to impact the application site.   

Following the submission of additional contaminated land documents - I have now 
considered the application again from a contaminated land perspective and reviewed 
the contaminated land questionnaire and 11 September 2017 Groundsure Report 
submitted.  Based on the information submitted there does not appear to be any 
potential sources of contaminated land that could impact the development site.  I would 
therefore have no further comments on this application with respect to contaminated 
land. 

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) – No objection subject to 
standard condition relating to parking and manoeuvring.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P20/S0224/PEM -  Response (18/02/2020)

Subdivide property into 2 x 1 bedroom flats with parking and shared garden area 
following on from application ref. P19/S4260/HH for a double storey and rear extension.

P19/S4260/HH - Approved (14/01/2020)
Double storey side and rear extension.

P19/S3008/PEO – Response (15/10/2019)
Double storey side/rear extension.

P19/S1176/HH - Approved (18/06/2019)
Proposed dropped kerb.

P18/S1434/FUL - Refused (27/06/2018)
Detached 3 bedroom dwelling with parking for 2 vehicles within the site of 105 Henley 
Road.

4.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
4.1 Development Plan Policies

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies:
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSEN2  -  Green Belt protection
CSQ2  -  Sustainable design and construction
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) Policies:
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D10  -  Waste Management
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers

Page 39

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S0224/PEM
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S4260/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S3008/PEO
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S1176/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S1434/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

EP2  -  Adverse affect by noise or vibration
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
EP8  -  Contaminated land
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
GB4  -  Openness of Green Belt maintained
H4  -  Housing on sites within the built up areas of towns and villages
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

South Oxfordshire Emerging Local Plan 2034 Policies 
The council is currently progressing the emerging local plan through the examination 
stage. The plan currently carries limited weight. Relevant policies include;
DES1E  -  Delivering high quality development
DES2E  -  Enhancing local character
DES3E  -  Design and Access Statements
DES5E  -  Outdoor amenity space
DES6E  -  Residential amenity
DES9E  -  Promoting sustainable design
H16E  -  Infill development
H17E  -  Sub-division and conversion to multiple occupation
H1E  -  Delivering new homes
H8E  -  Housing in the smaller villages
STRAT1E  -  The overall strategy
STRAT6E  -  Green Belt

4.2 Neighbourhood Plan
Sandford on Thames Parish Council is working on creating a Neighbourhood Plan.
Limited weight can be given to the plan at this stage.

4.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

4.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance

4.5 Other Relevant Legislation
Human Rights Act 1998
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

Equality Act 2010
In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

5.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
5.1 The key planning considerations in this case are:

 The principle of development 
 Green belt
 Housing supply

 Siting, scale and design 
 Impact on the openness of the green belt 
 Highways and parking impact
 Neighbouring and occupant amenity

Page 40



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

 Garden sizes
 Environmental considerations

 Waste
 Contamination

 CIL
 Other matters 

5.2 The principle of development
Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far 
as material to the application, and to any other material considerations. Section 38 (6) 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires where regard is to be had 
to the Development Plan, applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

5.3 In the case of this proposal, the most relevant parts of the Development Plan are the 
Core Strategy which was adopted in December 2012 and the saved policies in the 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

5.4 The National Planning Policy Framework does not form part of the statutory 
Development Plan but is an important material consideration in decision taking. 
Paragraph 14 of the NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which is the ‘golden thread’ running through decision taking.

For decision-taking this means:
- Approving development proposals that accords with the development plan 

without delay;
- And where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-

date, granting permission unless:
- Any adverse impacts of doing do would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 

the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as 
whole; or 

- Specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted. 
Green belt policies are included in such policies that direct restrictions over new 
development. 

5.5 Policy CS1 of the SOCS reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
The spatial strategy in Policy CSS1 establishes a settlement hierarchy where the 
amount and location of new housing is related to the availability of facilities and 
services in order to achieve a sustainable pattern of development.

5.6 Housing policies
Policy CSR1 of the SOCS relates to the council’s housing strategy in the villages within 
the district. Sandford-on-Thames is designated as a ‘smaller village’. As such the policy 
allows some additional housing via allocated sites, ‘infill’ plots and rural exception sites. 
‘Infill’ is defined as “the filling of a small gap in an otherwise built-up frontage or on sites 
within settlements where the site is closely surrounded by buildings”. This site is at the 
end of a linear ribbon of houses and does not comprise a ‘small gap’ in built form and is 
not closely surrounded by buildings. As such, the development conflicts with the 
council’s housing strategy policy CSR1.

5.7 There is, however, an extant planning permission for a two-storey side and rear 
extension which is a material planning consideration in the assessment of this proposal. 
The approved extension is very similar in terms of size, scale and design to the scheme 
for two flats now proposed and it is necessary to now consider whether there is any 

Page 41



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

harm created by the proposed scheme over and above that of the approved extension. 
There is a realistic fall-back position for almost identical development in this case and 
this is a material consideration that would indicate that planning permission should be 
approved despite the apparent conflict with the Housing and Green Belt policies.  I 
discuss the material considerations further later in this report.

5.8 Green Belt policies
The site lies within the Oxford green belt. The NPPF states that in the Green Belt 
“inappropriate development” is by definition harmful to the green belt and shall not be 
approved unless there are “very special circumstances”. Very special circumstances 
will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of 
inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations. 
Policy CSEN2 of the SOCS seeks to prevent development which would be harmful to 
the openness of the green belt whilst CSR1 allows for some infill development in the 
Green Belt, although development will not be granted that is contrary to national policy 
guidance in the NPPF. 

5.9 Paragraph 145 of the NPPF identifies a number of forms of development that are not 
inappropriate in the Green Belt which includes;

- New buildings in the green belt if it amounts to limited infilling in villages, which 
would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the 
purpose of including land within it than the existing development; and

- The extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in 
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building. (It is 
under this category that the extant planning permission for an extension to the 
existing dwelling was considered.)

The current proposal to build 2 x 1-bedroom flats does not constitute ‘infilling’ (or any 
other of the exceptions for new buildings), the development amounts to ‘inappropriate 
development’. Consideration needs to be given as to whether any very special 
circumstances exist to outweigh this harm.

5.10 Paragraph 144 of the NPPF states that “when considering any planning application, 
local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to 
the green belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to 
the green belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the 
proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.”

5.11 In this case, an extant planning permission exists for a two-storey side and rear 
extension to 105 Henley Road under ref P19/S4260/HH. This current proposal would 
not be materially different to this extant planning permission in terms of footprint and 
appearance. This is a material planning consideration in the assessment of this current 
proposal. It is my opinion that there would not be any additional harm to the openness 
or visual amenity of the green belt from this development. As such it is my opinion that 
the extant planning permission represents very special circumstances and that the 
principle of development is acceptable in Green Belt policy terms.
  

5.12 Siting, scale and design 
Policy CSQ3 of the SOCS seeks to ensure that all new development is of a high quality 
and inclusive design, responds to its site and surroundings; and is of a scale, type and 
density appropriate to the site and its setting. 

Policy H4 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that the siting, scale and design of any new 
dwelling is in keeping with the surrounding development. Policy D1 further supports 
good design principles. 

Page 42



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

In terms of the general scale and design of the proposal, the proposed development is 
appropriate as it would appear as a two-storey extension to the existing dwelling and be 
constructed using matching materials. 

The extension approved under planning ref P19/S4260/HH was deemed to be 
appropriate in terms of its siting, scale and design as an extension to no 105 Henley 
Road. The external appearance of the current proposed extension to the main house to 
create 2 x 1bed flats is not materially different to the approved scheme. It must follow 
the siting, scale and design is therefore appropriate in this case too. Flats do not have 
any permitted development rights and therefore any proposal to increase the size of the 
flats would be subject to a further planning application. 

Also, the attached neighbouring property, 103 Henley Road, has had a two-storey side 
extension and therefore the proposed extension to 105 Henley Road would provide 
symmetry between the two properties. 

5.13 Impact on the openness of the Green Belt.
Policy GB4 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that any development in the Green Belt 
should not affect its openness or visual amenity. The impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt and visual amenity is not considered to be materially different to the extant 
scheme for an extension and the impact on openness would be the same. 

5.14 Highways and parking 
Policy T1 and T2 of the SOLP seek to ensure that new development has adequate 
parking and turning provision and safe access to the highway. The proposed 
development would provide the existing dwelling with 2 parking spaces and each flat 
with a single space plus two spaces for visitors, providing 6 spaces overall. These 
would be sited off road at the front of the property in an area which is already used for 
the parking of vehicles. Cycle parking is also proposed at the front of the development.

Planning permission to drop the kerb has been approved under ref P19/S1176/HH so 
there is easy access to the front of the property for parking. 

5.15 The County Highway liaison officer has not raised any objection to this proposal subject 
to a standard condition in relation to parking and turning areas to be provided as per 
the submitted plans. As such, there is no objection to this proposal on highway 
grounds. 

5.16 Amenity of neighbours and occupants
Policy H4 (iv) of the SOLP seeks to ensure that there are no overriding amenity 
objections. The proposed development would have windows in the front, rear and side 
elevations. The windows at the rear would look obliquely towards the rear garden of no 
105 Henley Road. Two of these windows are bathroom windows so would be obscure 
glazed. The other window is a bedroom window. 

This is a similar relationship between no 105 and its neighbour at no 103 Henley Road. 
This rear window would also look into the private rear garden which would be used by 
the occupiers of the ground floor flat. However, anyone looking out of this window 
would do so across the flat roof single storey element of the proposal at the rear. A 
private area of garden immediately outside the patio doors at the rear would be 
retained to provide privacy for the occupiers of the ground floor flat. 

The occupiers of the first floor flat would have access to the shared garden. They would 
not have privacy guaranteed as the rear ground floor windows of the ground floor flat 

Page 43



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

would look directly into the garden. However, communal gardens for flats is quite typical 
and the lack of amenity space which is not private is not a reason to refuse this 
application in my opinion. 

5.17 Garden sizes
Policy D3 of the SOLP requires that a private outdoor garden and outdoor space should 
be provided for all new dwellings. The amount of land to be use for the garden or 
amenity space will be determined by the size of the dwelling proposed. Policy D3 and 
the SODG seek to ensure that reasonable standards of private amenity space are 
provided in new developments. No 105 Henley Road is a 3-bed dwelling, and this 
would need to retain a garden of some 100sqm. The 2x 1 bed flats would need a 
garden size equivalent to 35sqm per unit. The submitted block plan indicates that the 
‘host’ dwelling would retain a rear garden of some 147 sqm whilst the 2 flats would 
share a garden area of some 152 sqm. As such, the development would have 
adequate private garden area. 
 

5.18 Environmental issues
Waste
Policy D10 of the SOLP notes that development which do not provide adequate waste 
disposal arrangements will not be permitted. Bins can be stored within the property 
boundary and be moved to the presentation point without the need to go up or down 
steps or through the property. There is an appropriate amount of space proposed for 
bin storage. 

Contamination
Policy EP8 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that development on contaminated land will 
not be permitted unless the contamination is treated by the developer. The policy notes 
that planning permission will not be granted unless the council is satisfied that 
adequate and effective remedial measures to remove the risks to human health and the 
environment will be implemented. The council’s Environmental Protection officer 
requested a contaminated land questionnaire and other documents. These have now 
been submitted and the officer has no objection to the proposal with respect to 
contaminated land. 

5.19 Community Infrastructure Levy
The Council’s CIL charging schedule was adopted on 1 April 2016. CIL is a planning 
charge that local authorities can implement to help deliver infrastructure and to support 
the development of their area and is primarily calculated on the increase in footprint 
created as a result of the development.

5.20 In this case, two new residential units are being created so the development is CIL 
liable. The forms and information required at this stage of the development process 
have been submitted. 

5.21 Other issues 
The Parish Council have objected to this proposal as they consider it to be 
inappropriate development in the green belt. As explained in this report, the proposal 
represents inappropriate development, however, there is an extant permission for an 
extension of a similar size and appearance to the current proposal and its impact on the 
openness and visual amenity of the Green Belt would not be materially different. As 
such this constitutes very special circumstances which outweigh the harm, by reason of 
inappropriateness, in my opinion.

The Parish Council also comment that the front of the property would be dominated by 
the parked car. Photographs taken at the time when the extant permission was being 

Page 44



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

considered show that the front of the property is already used for parking of several 
vehicles when used as a single dwelling ( see photo below).  As such there would not 
be any material difference in character to the front of the property. 

Finally, the Parish Council refer to way the applicant has sought permission for the two-
storey side extension and is now proposing 2 x 1 bed flats after the application for a 
detached property was refused in 2018. This is a legitimate way of proceeding. Each 
planning application must be considered on its individual planning merits. 

6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION
The proposal does not constitute infill development and is inappropriate in the Green 
Belt. However, the extant planning permission for the two-storey side extension to the 
property is a material planning consideration and constitutes very special 
circumstances which outweigh that harm. The proposal would not be unneighbourly 
and would not result in issues of highway safety. Given the material considerations, the 
proposal accords with Development Plan policies and Government advice. 

7.0 RECOMMENDATION
7.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions:

1: Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission
2: Approved plans 
3: Materials as on plan
4: Parking & Manoeuvring Areas Retained 

Author:           Kim Gould
Email:             Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Contact No:    01235 422600

 

Page 45

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 28 May 2020

Page 46



Appendix 1

Page 47

Agenda Item 9P20/S0688/FUL



www.southoxon.gov.uk page 1 / 5

PLANNING

Mr S Nichols
c/o J M J Plans
11 Hilltop Gardens
Islip
OX5 2SJ

REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION

South Oxfordshire District Council hereby gives notice that planning permission is
REFUSED for the carrying out of the development referred to above for the following
reason(s) : 

The site lies on the edge the built up limits of Sandford-on-Thames, which is
classified as one of the "smaller" villages in the district: It is not identified for
any significant housing growth in the Development Plan due to the sustainability
(in terms of services, facilities and infrastructure) of the village being limited .
The proposal does not represent 'infill' development as defined by the Core
Strategy, extending a ribbon of linear built form and envelope of the settlement.
The application does not accord with the district's strategy for growth and
necessary infrastructure. The proposal is unsustainable and therefore contrary
to  policies CS1, CSS1, and CSR1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and
policy guidance in NPPF.

The site lies within the Oxford Green Belt, where there is a general presumption
that new buildings are inappropriate in order to conserve the special character
of Oxford City; and to preserve the countryside outside it. The development
does not constitute one of the exceptions to 'inappropriate' development as
defined in the NPPF, as such, and should not be approved unless 'very special
circumstances' are demonstrated. The development extends the built limits of

1.

2.

Planning Decision

Application No : P18/S1434/FUL

Application proposal, including any amendments :
Detached 3 bedroom dwelling with parking for 2 vehicles within the site of 105
Henley Road.

Site Location : 105 Henley Road Sandford-On-Thames OX4 4YW

P18/S1434/FUL

Appendix 2

Page 48



page 2 / 5

P18/S1434/FUL

the settlement into an open space which assists in transitioning from the semi-
rural site into paddocks and countryside. The development would not respect
the open character of the site or surrounding area and there are no special
circumstances demonstrated to depart from this conflict. Substantial weight is
afforded to the harm to the openness of the Green Belt. The development
therefore is contrary to polices CSEN2 in the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy,
saved policy GB4 in the adopted South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 and
paragraphs 80 to 90 in the NPPF.

The proposed development would result in detriment to the safety and
convenience of users of the public highway. Insufficient information has been
provided to conclude that the application site can accommodate adequate
parking and turning spaces for vehicles. This will likely result in vehicles having
to reverse into a busy road, a short distance from the entrance and exit to a fast
moving dual carriageway. Highway and driver safety is likely to be
compromised. As such, the development is contrary to saved policies T1, T2
and D2 of the adopted South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

The site has is located in an area that may contain land contaminants due to
previous land uses. Insufficient information has been provided to assess
whether the site is suitable for further human habitation. As such, the
development is contrary to saved policy EP8 of the adopted South Oxfordshire
Local Plan 2011 and paragraphs 120 and 121 of the NPPF.

The development to which this refusal relates is liable to pay the Community
Infrastructure Levy as set out in the South Oxfordshire Charging Schedule.
Please refer to the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). If planning permission
is granted following a successful appeal against this refusal a Liability Notice
will be issued to the relevant person following the issue of the appeal decision.
Detailed guidance and the CIL Process is available on the planning portal
website http://www.planningportal.co.uk/cil or our website
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/cil

3.

4.

NB:

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework the Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development
proposals. The Planning Service works with applicants/agents in a positive and
proactive manner by offering a pre-application advice service and by advising
applicants/agents of issues that arise during the processing of their application and
where possible suggesting solutions to problems. The applicant/agent was advised
why the proposal does not accord with the development plan and that there are no
other material considerations to outweigh those objections before the application was
determined.

Page 49



page 3 / 5

P18/S1434/FUL

Head of Planning
27th June 2018

Page 50



page 4 / 5

P18/S1434/FUL

STATUTORY INFORMATIVE

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse
permission for the proposed development or to grant it subject to conditions, then
you can appeal to the Secretary of State for the Environment under sections 78 and
79 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

If you want to appeal, then you must do so within six months of the date of this
notice, using a form which you can get from :

The Planning Inspectorate
Customer Support Unit
Temple Quay House
2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol
BS1 6PN
Telephone : 0303 444 5000
www.planningportal.gov.uk
email: enquiries@pins.gsi.gov.uk.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but
he will not normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special
circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to him that the local
planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed
development or could not have granted it without the conditions it imposed, having
regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of the development order and
to any directions given under the order.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely
because the local planning authority based its decision on a direction given by him.

Purchase Notice

If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State for the Environment
refuses permission to develop land or grants its subject to conditions, the owner may
claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing
state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted.

In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council

Page 51



page 5 / 5

P18/S1434/FUL

(District Council, London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London)
in whose area the land is situated.  This notice will require the Council to purchase
his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part VI, Chapter 1 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Compensation

In certain circumstances compensation may be claimed from the local planning
authority if permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of
State on appeal or on reference of the application to him.

These circumstances are set out in sections 114 and related provisions of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Planning Portal contains a wide range of helpful planning-related guidance and
services. You may wish to view their website (www.planningportal.gov.uk). 

Page 52



0 10m 20

Scale Bar 1 : 1250 (A4)

30 40 50 60 70

Address:

105 Henley Road
Sandford On Thames
Oxfordshire

Client:
Mr S Nichols

Title:
LOCATION PLAN

Proposed Plan:
1 BEDROOM GROUND FLOOR FLAT AND 1

BEDROOM 1ST FLOOR FLAT

Drn by: JH

Date: Feb 2020 Drg No: Nic/003

Rev: 1

Web: www.jmjplans.com

Mobile : 07825 383963

E-mail : info@jmjplans.com

105

95

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2018. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Appendix 3

Page 53



0 5 10 40 60

Scale Bar 1 : 500

Drn by: JH

Scale: 1 : 500 (A4)

Date: Feb 2020 Drg No: NIC/004

Rev: 1

sheet: 1

Title:
LAYOUT

Address

105 Henley Road
Sandford On Thames
Oxfordshire

Client:
         Mr S Nichols

Web: www.jmjplans.comE-mail : info@jmjplans.com

COVERED BICYCLE RACKING

BINS STORAGE

SHARED DRIVEWAY

2 X SPACES FOR
EXISTING HOUSE

1 SPACE FOR
GROUND FLOOR FLAT

1 SPACE FOR
FIRST FLOOR FLAT

2 X SPACES FOR
VISITORS

SHARED
GARDEN  EXISTING

MANHOLE

  NEW
MANHOLE

P
age 54



0 2m

Scale Bar 1 : 200 (A3)

4m 6m 8m 10m 12m

Address:

105 Henley Road
Sandford On Thames
Oxfordshire

Client:
         Mr S Nichols

Drn by: JH

Date: Feb 2020 Drg No: Nic/001

Rev: 1

Title:
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS

Proposed Plan:

1 BEDROOM GROUND FLOOR FLAT AND 1
BEDROOM 1ST FLOOR FLAT

Web: www.jmjplans.com

Mobile : 07825 383963

E-mail : info@jmjplans.com

EXISTING NORTH EAST ELEVATIONEXISTING SOUTH WEST ELEVATION EXISTING SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

PROPOSED SOUTH WEST ELEVATION PROPOSED SOUTH EAST ELEVATION PROPOSED NORTH EAST ELEVATION

EXISTING FLOOR PLANS

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

bed 1bed 3

bed 2 bathbath

bed 1bed 3

bed 2 bathbath

P
age 55



Web: www.jmjplans.com

Mobile : 07525 383963

E-mail : info@jmjplans.com

Address:

105 Henley Road
Sandford On Thames
Oxfordshire

Client:
Mr S Nichols

Drn by: JH

Date: Feb 2020 Drg No: Nic/005

Rev: 1

Title:
PARKING PLAN

Proposed Plan:

1 BEDROOM GROUND FLOOR FLAT AND 1
BEDROOM 1ST FLOOR FLAT

0 2m

Scale Bar 1 : 200 (A4)

4m 6m 8m 10m 12m

SHARED
GARDEN

Page 56


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	7 Public participation
	Kate Barrett, Old Vicarage, South Stoke SODC Planning 28.05.20
	From Roger Guiver South Stoke 28.05.20
	South Stoke PC Planning Cttee 28.05.20

	8 P19/S4364/FUL - Old Vicarage, The Street, South Stoke
	Appendices 1-3
	1 Appendix Os extract
	2 Appendix 2 Agreement form
	3 Appendix 3 Location Plan drwgno LOC 001
	3a Appendix3 Block Plan drwgno BLO 001
	3b Appendix 3 Floor Plan Proposed & Existing Drwgno F001


	9 P20/S0688/FUL - 105 Henley Road, Sandford-on-Thames, OX4 4YW
	Appendices 1-3
	1 Appendix 1 Location plan
	2 Appendix Decision Notice
	3 Appendix 3 Location Plan Dwg NIC-003-1
	3a Appendix 3 Block plan
	3b Appendix 3 Elevations & Floor Plans Proposed dwg NIC-001-1
	3c Appendix 3 Parking Plan Dwg NIC-005-1





